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Th e House

Th e two-story frame house on one acre at 7675 Albany Post Road owned by Jane Ferguson stands out as the only 
19th century house along a stretch of one-story homes from the 1940s to the 1970s. A 1987 inventory of historic 
houses estimated it was built about 1860 (Figure 1). Research has since confi rmed it was built in 1878. 

Th e Ferguson house typifi es Italianate architecture in fashion from the 1840s through the 1880s, featuring a 
hipped roof, ornamented and bracketed cornice, and two-over-two windows. Th e L-shaped form is asymmetrical, 
with a wing set back off  the south side of the house. Th e porch, also with bracketed cornice, runs along the front and 
wraps along the south wing of the house (Figure 2). 

Th e rear additions were later: one of two stories, with a large kitchen downstairs and bedrooms upstairs, and an-
other, the one-story sunroom. Both have expansive views of the farmland and large elms behind the house (Figures 
3, 3a). Stately Norway spruces, typically planted in the 19th century as windbreaks, protect the northern exposure. 
(Figure 4). 

Interior alterations have been made over the years, such as the division of the large room north of the entry hall 
into a living room and adjoining library, as evidenced by awkward adjustments to the ceiling molding (Figure 5). 

Th e basement does not show any evidence of construction earlier than 1878. Th e beams and posts are rough-sawn, 
not hand-hewn (Figure 6). Th ere is a barn on the property that appears to be as old or older than the house (Figure 7).

 

Early History

Th e house sits on what was once part of a large farm along the busy road connecting New York City to Albany. 
Early in the 18th century the road was named the Queen’s Highway in honor of England’s newly crowned Queen 
Anne. With the later accession to the throne of King George I, it became the King’s Highway. However, well before 
the Revolution, it was commonly known as the ‘post’ road for the runners who delivered the mail. By the end of the 
18th century, there was daily stagecoach service along the Post Road.  Th e circa 1760 Elmendorph Inn was an im-
portant way stop, anchoring the small settlement that had grown up around it, now the Village of Red Hook. 

In 1751, second-generation German Palatine settler and farmer Hendrick Martin leased from Henry Beekman a 
plot of land strategically located on the Post Road between the Elmendorph Inn and a grist mill on the Saw Kill. His 
stone house stands at the end of what is now Willowbrook Lane. Martin later divided the farm between his sons, 
David and Gottlieb. Gottlieb built his own stone house on the southern part of the farm bordering the Post Road.1 
For generations this house has been known as the Martin-Cookingham house or, simply, the Cookingham house, 
for the family who succeeded the Martins. 

In 1863, John R. Faure is recorded as having sold to David P. Lord (acting on behalf of his younger brother, John 
H. Lord, a minor) 131 acres of the Martin farm, including the original Hendrick Martin house, 2 and John H. Lord’s 
name appears on the 1867 Beers map next to the house, then called “Brookside” (Figure 8). Lord then sold the 
property to Edgar L. Traver for $14,000 in 1871.3  Both the 1876 Gray map (Figure 9) and James H. Smith’s History 
of Duchess County 4 cite Traver as resident in the Hendrick Martin House. 
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Figure 1 - 1987 NYS Building Structure Inventory Form, page 1
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Figure 1 - 1987 NYS Building Structure Inventory Form. page 2
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Figure 2 - Exterior view, southeast elevation

Figure 3 - Exterior view, west elevation and close-up of additions 
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Figure 3a - Exterior view, west elevation and close-up of additions 

Figure 4 - Exterior view, north elevation
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Figure 5 - Interior, fr ont living room

Figure 6 - Basement beams
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Figure 7 - Barn west of the house

Figure 8 - 1867 detail of Frederick W. Beers map of Dutchess County 
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Figure 9 - 1876 detail of O. W. Gray map of Dutchess County
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Edgar Lewis Traver (1829-1905)
Owner 1871-1878

Edgar Traver was born 
to Evert Traver and 
Helen Shook Traver in 
1829 (Figures 10 & 11). 
A prosperous farmer and 
landowner, he eventual-
ly owned several other 
parcels in the area.

Th e farm he purchased 
from Lord is listed in the 
1875 New York State 
agricultural census with a 
value of $14,000, includ-
ing $3,000 in farm build-
ings, $1,500 in livestock, 
and $1,600 of gross sales 
(Figure 12).

Figure 10 - Evert Traver, father of Edgar Traver
Figure 11 - Helen Traver, mother of Edgar Traver

Figure 12 - 1875 NYS Agricultural Census 
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Traver was married three times – fi rst to Anna Margaret, who 
bore their two sons, Seth Arthur and Ranson (Figure 13) and 
died in 1865. In 1866, he wed Catharine E. Benedict, who passed 
in 1895. Lastly, he married Mary Piester in 1897.  He died on 
July 16, 1905 and is buried in St. Paul’s Lutheran cemetery in the 
Village of Red Hook.5 

Lyman Westfall (1815-1902) 
and Catharine (Hoyt) Westfall (1822-1903) 

Owners 1878-1899

Th e fi rst deed to the one-acre Ferguson lot records the sale by 
Edgar and Catharine Traver to Catharine Westfall (wife of Lyman 
Westfall) in 1878.6 Th e transaction was noted in the Red Hook 
Journal (Figure 14). Although not documented, we surmise the 
Travers and the Westfalls were related, hence the transaction.7 
According to his obituary, Lyman, a riverboat captain, was ‘‘one 
of the best known steamboat men on the river’’ (Figure 15). 

Born in Rensselaer County, Catharine and Lyman were married 
in Brooklyn in 1844 and raised two children there, Alice August 
and Samuel DeWitt.  Th e Red Hook Journal reported that the 
Westfalls broke ground for their new house in June 1878 (Figure 
16). Th ey fi rst appear living in Red Hook in the 1880 Federal 
Census (Figure 17). Th e 1892 New York State Census lists the 
Westfalls and Th eodore and Anna Cookingham as neighbors 
(Figure 18). (Cookingham descendants recently sold the Martin/
Cookingham farm to the Town of Red Hook).  

Figure 13 - Arthur and Ranson, sons of Edgar and 
Anna Margaret Traver

Figure 14 - Red Hook Journal, April 26, 1878

Figure 15 - Poughkeepsie News-Press, May 5, 1902, 
Lyman Westfall obituary

Figure 16 - Red Hook Journal, June 21, 1878
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Figure 17 - 1880 U.S. Federal Census, Catharine and Lyman Westfall 
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Figure 18 - 1892 U.S. Federal Census, Catharine and Lyman Westfall

Figure 19 - August 5, 1897 Boston marriage registry, No. 57, William K. & Marietta Niver
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Th e Westfalls sold their house to William K. Niver 
of Syracuse in 1899.8 Th e 1900 Federal Census still lists 
Lyman, age 84 and Catharine, age 76, at the property, 
so perhaps the new owners leased it back to them. Upon 
Lyman’s death at 88 in 1902, Catharine returned to her 
Rensselaer County hometown of Nassau. Th ey are bur-
ied together in the Nassau-Schodack cemetery.9

William Kingman Niver (1835-1907) 
and Marietta Squire (1835-1905)

Owners 1899-1902

Kinderhook native William Niver was a prominent 
Syracuse businessman with substantial holdings in rail-
roads and coal. He and Marietta, his second wife, were 
married in Boston in 1897, two years before he bought the 
house in Red Hook, when he was 61 and she 57 (Figure 
19). Th ere is no evidence that they ever lived in the house 
before selling it less than three years later. Aft er a series 
of fi nancial reverses and a debilitating illness, Niver was 

Figure 20 - Press and Sun Bulletin (Binghamton, New 
York), Feb 16, 1906

Figure 21 - Th e Post Standard (Syracuse, New York), 
Feb 20, 1906

Figure 22 - Th e Buff alo News, April 1, 1907, 
William K. Niver obituary

declared a ‘lunatic’ by the Onondaga County Court 
and his possessions sold at auction. He died in 1907 
and is interred under a large monument in Oakwood 
Cemetery, Syracuse10 (Figures 20-23).
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Nathaniel L. Morehouse (1852-1914) and Henrietta 
Rowe Morehouse (1856-1921)

Owners 1902-1921
 
Th e next owner, Milan farmer Nathaniel Morehouse 

married Henrietta Rowe in 1893 (Figure 24) and bought 
the property in 1902. 11 (Figure 25). Th e Morehouses were 
active in Red Hook social circles (Figures 26 & 27) and 
Nathaniel was a director of the Rhinebeck Bank. A 1905 
Red Hook Journal article recounts an amusing incident 
near the house refl ecting the early days of automobiles on 
the Post Road (Figure 28).

Figure 23 - Th e Buff alo Courier April 1, 1907, 
William K. Niver obituary

Figure 24 - Red Hook Journal, November 24, 1893

Figure 25 - Red Hook Journal, May 23, 1902

Figure 26 - Red Hook Journal, November 4, 1904

Figure 27 - Red Hook Journal, November 25, 1904
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Figure 28 - Red Hook Journal, June 6, 1905

Figure 29 - 1910 U.S. Federal Census, Nathaniel and Henrietta Morehouse

Cited by the 1910 Federal Census as 
retired (“depends on his own income”), he 
grew despondent aft er a long illness and 
committed suicide in 1914 (Figures 29 & 
30). Nathaniel had bequeathed the house 
to Henrietta and when she died in 1921, 
the property went to her sisters, Mary S. 
Rowe and Julia C. Rowe. 

Figure 30 - Poughkeepsie Eagle-News, October 23, 1914, Nathaniel Morehouse Obituary



16

Figure 32 - 1925 New York State census, Annie Cotter

Annie Elisabeth (Sheehan) Cotter, 
(1857-1930)

Owner 1923-1930

In quick turn, the Rowe sisters sold the house two years later to 
Annie Cotter 12 (Figure 31), widow of Rock City farmer Law-
rence Cotter (1843-1907). Th ey had four children: George P., 
Lawrence E., Margret M., and Alise A. In the 1925 NYS Cen-
sus, Annie is listed as head of household, age 67, living with her 
25-year-old daughter Alice (Alise), whose occupation is listed as 
‘bookkeeper’ (Figure 32). 

Second son Lawrence Edward went to medical school, endear-
ing himself over the ensuing decades to Red Hook as, simply, 
Doctor Cotter. In her own right, Alise became locally famous as the longtime editor and general manager of the 
Red Hook Advertiser, serving from 1926 to 1966. As reported by her paper, she married Donald (“Don”) Norton in 
1929, celebrating their wedding reception in the house (Figure 33). Th e 1930 Federal Census lists Annie living with 
Alise and Don, values the property at $12,000, and also notes that they have a ‘radio set’ (Figure 34).  

Above, Figure 31 - Annie Cotter
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Figure 33 - Red Hook Advertiser, August 15, 1929 Wedding Reception

Figure 34 - 1930 U.S. Federal Census, Annie Cotter, Alise and Don Norton
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Figure 35 - Red Hook Advertiser, June 19, 1930, Annie Cotter obituary

Aft er Annie’s death in 1930 
(Figure 35), her son George, as 
executor, sold the house to Louis 
William Dillman.13 Of interest 
here is Dutchess County’s 1936 
aerial photo of Red Hook, show-
ing the house, alone, surrounded 
by the expansive Cookingham 
farmland. (Figure 36).

Right:
Figure 36 - 1936 aerial map showing 

farmland around property
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Figure 37 - 1940 U.S. Federal Census, Louis W., Lillian, and Louis G. Dillman

Louis William Dillman (1886-1961) 
and Lillian (Vogel) Dillman  (1891-1962)

Owners 1936-1959

Brooklyn fi refi ghter Louis Dillman, age 26, married Lillian Vogel, age 21, in 1912 in Brooklyn. Leaving the New 
York City Fire Department in 1932, he and Lillian moved to Red Hook, most likely at the urging of her step-broth-
er, Henry Vogel, who lived on Yantz Road.  Th e 1940 Federal Census lists Louis, age 54, and his wife, age 49, living 
with their son, Louis G., age 25 (Figure 37). Louis and Lillian died in 1961 and 1962, respectively (Figures 38 & 
39). 

Fondly to generations of Red Hookers, their son was “Dr. Dillman,” the dentist in town. He exemplifi ed the 
“Greatest Generation,” to wit: a “Screaming Eagle” of the 101st Airborne Division who parachuted into Normandy 
on D-day; director, First National Bank of Red Hook; president, Red Hook Central School Board of Education, 
and with his, wife, Kay, life members of the Egbert Benson Historical Society of Red Hook, precursor to Historic 
Red Hook. Th ey had two sons, Barry and Randy.
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Figure 40 - Poughkeepsie Journal, March 2, 
2006, Frank Mancari obituary

Figure 39 - Poughkeepsie Journal, December 17, 
1962, Lillian Dillman obituary

Figure 38 - Poughkeepsie Journal, Sept 5, 1961, 
Louis Dillman obituary

Frank Anthony Mancari, Jr. (1916-2006) 
and Alice (Murray) Mancari (1919-1987)

Owners 1959-1979

Th e senior Dillmans sold the house to Frank and Alice Mancari in 1959.14 Frank, of Cold Spring,  had married 
Alice in 1945 in Philipstown. He was Superintendent of Highways for Dutchess County and died in 2006 (Figure 
40). Th eir daughter Alice was married to Dr. Dillman’s son, Randy, so again we see family connections in the house’s 
provenance. 
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Endnotes
 1  National Register of Historic Places documentation, 2007 
 2  1863 Deed 122:672 
 3  1871 Deed 161:539 
 4  James H. Smith, History of Duchess County, 1683-1882, p. 186, published 1882.   
 5   fi ndagrave.com/memorial/119745494/edgar-lewis-traver 
 6  1879 Deed 195:528 
 7  Edgar Traver’s oldest son, Seth Arthur (1851-1925) married Martha H. Westfall (1865-1937) in 1882. fi ndagrave.com/memorial/102950679/
martha-a-traver 
 8  1899 Deed 308:80 
 9  fi ndagrave.com/memorial/95936246/lyman-westfall 
 10  fi ndagrave.com/memorial/83953493/william-kingman-niver 
 11  1902 Deed 320:378 
 12  1923 Deed 510:210 
 13  1936 Deed 553:322 
 14  1959 Deed 999:451 
 15  1979 Deed 1507:253 

 Jane (Hough) Ferguson
Owner 1979-present

Dr. Jane Hough, a pediatrician, and husband John B. Ferguson, Bard College Professor of Biology, together 
bought the property from the Mancaris in 1979.15 When the Fergusons divorced in 1987, Jane became sole owner. 
Th anks to more than forty years of her careful, discerning stewardship, the house continues to refl ect the deep con-
nections of time, place, and family that make Red Hook, “our” town. 
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